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LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Lloyds TSB General Insurance Limited (‘the Company™) 1s a company hmited by shares, dormciled and incorporated 1n the Umited
Kingdom The Company’s principal place of business 1s Tredegar Park, Newport, South Wales, NP10 85B

Pnncipal activity and business review

The principal activity of the Company 15 underwriting general insurance, including creditor insurance and household and domestic all nisks
msurance  In September 2011 the brand coverage was extended to include new busimess written by the Halifax and Bank of Scotland
brands as well as the existing Lloyds TSB brand Policies are sold through the Lioyds Banking Group distribution channels and corporale
partnerships N

On the 8" February 2011 the Company announced a reduction in workforce following the decision made by Lioyds Banking Group plc, m
July 2010, 1o cease selling Payment Protection Insurance The Company 1s focussing on determining the best model to provide ongoing
support to the existing customer base

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the busmess are considered to be Insurance Risk, Operational Risk, Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk
and Market Risk (see Note 4 1o the financial statements) These risks continue to be closely managed duning these times of uncertamty

Profit before tax grew by £43m (33%), mainly reflecting improved performance on property, with 2011 being relatively bemgn, whereas
2010 was impacted by iwo freeze events This 1s partly offset by the run-off of the creditor book and increased expenses  The creditor
run-off has resulted 1n lower premsum revenue, partly offset by lower claims incurred and commussien payments

The business strategy and focus for 2012 and beyond, for the [nsurance Division, continues to be profitably growing market share 1n
chosen segments, developing profitable insurance partnerships, improving margins through better customer management, Lmprovig

service and efficiency, successfully embedding Solvency 11 and creating one Insurance business (bringing the General Insurance and the
Life, Pensions and Envestment businesses together)

Results and dividends

The profit after taxation for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to £130m as set oul 1n the statement of comprehensive income on
page 8 (2010 £95m)

Interim dividends of £132m (£2 14 per share) were paid during the year 1n respect of 2011
Interim dividends of £119m (£1 93 per share) were paid during 2010 in respect of 2010

The directors do not recommend any further dividend in respect of 2011

Key Performance Indicators (*KPIs’)

The Company’s financial KPIs are net insurance premium revenue, claims and loss adjustment expenses and emplayee numbers all of
which are disclosed tn the financial statements, together with the Company’s combined ratio The Company’s decreased combined rauo of
719% {2010 819%) reflects decreased claims costs on the property book following benign weather in 2011 compared to frecze events during
2010




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Directors
The names of the present directors of the Company are shown on page 1

The following changes in directors have taken place during the year and following the financial year end

Appointed Resigned
A D Briggs 20 May 2011
A G Kane 20 May 2011
S J Hughes 11 October 2011
RAMY Delm 14 October 2011
M Canniffe 31 December 2011
L. K Forster 31 December 2011
M Christophers 24 January 2011
R L Beaven 2 February 2011 31 December 2011
I C R Stuart 16 March 2011 31 December2011
R J M Bulloch 20 May 2011
R Harris 20 May 2011 29 February 2012
T E Strauss 17 October 2011
K P Cracknel! 24 Qctober 2011
G N Stewart 1 January 2012
Dr N M Bryson 24 January 2012
J Goford 24 January 2012
A M Peck 24 January 2012
D J Walkden 24 January 2012

Alt directors have the benefit of a contract of indemmty, which 1s both a Qualifymg Third Party Indemmty Provision and a Qualifying
Pension Scheme Indemnity Provision This was n force during the whole of the year Directors no longer in office but who served on the
Board at any ume in the year had the benefit of this contract of indemmity during that period of service

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Company complies with the ‘Prompt Payment Code’ published by the Department for Business Innovation and Skills (‘BIS’),
regarding the making of payments to suppliers Information about the ‘Prompt Payment Code’ may be obtamed by wvisiting
www promptpaymentcode org uk

The Company’s policy 1s to agree terms of payment with suppliers and these normally provide for settlement withint 30 days after the date
of nvoice, except where other arrangements have been negotiated [t 1s the policy of the Company to abide by the agreed terms of
payment, provided the supplier performs according to the terms of the contract

As the Company owed no amounts to trade creduors at 31 December 2011, the number of days required to be shown wn this report, to
comply with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006, 15 ml (2010 nil)




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Employees

The Company, as part of Lleyds Bankmg Group, 1s commutted to providing employment pracuces and policies which recognise the
diversity of our workforce and ensure equality for employees regardless of sex, race, disability, age, sexual onientation or religious belief

In the UK, Lloyds Banking Group belongs to the major employer groups campaigning for equality for the above groups of staff, including
Employers’ Forum on Disability, Employers’ Forum on Age, Stonewall and the Race for Opportunity Our mvolvement with these
orgamsations enables us to 1idenufy and implement best practice for our staff

Employees are kept closely nvolved 1 major changes affecting them through such measures as team meetings, briefings, internal
communications and opinion surveys There are well established procedures, including regular meetings with recogmsed unions, to ensure
that the views of employees are taken into account i1t reaching decisions

Schemes offermg share options or the acquisttion of shares are available for most staff, to encourage their financial nvolvement in Lloyds
Banking Group plc

Lloyds Banking Group 1s commutted to providmg employees with comprehensive coverage of the economic and financial issues affecting
the Group We have estabhished a full surte of communication channels, including an extensive face-to-face briefing programme which
allows us to update our employees on our performance and any financial 1ssues throughout the year

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Direclors” Report and the financial statements n accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors Lo prepare financial statements for cach financial year Under that law the directors have prepared the
financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union [n
preparing these financial statements, the directors have also elected to comply with 1IFRSs, 1ssued by the Iaternational Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are sausfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period  In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to

¢ selecl suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

s state whether applicable International Financial Reporung Standards ([FRSs) as adopted by the European Umon have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explamed in the financial statements In preparing these financial
statements, the directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs, 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB),

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basts unless 1t 15 inappropnate to presume that the company will continue
1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tume the financial position of the company and enable them 1o ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also tesponsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the company’s website Legislation n the United Kingdom goverming
the preparation and dissemmnation of financial statements may differ from legtslation wn other jurisdictions

Risk

The Company s exposure to financial nisk relates o insurance, market, credit and hquidity nisks  The Company 1s also exposed to
operauional nsk  The directors believe that there are proper procedures and controls in place, as explamed in Note 4 1n more detail, to
enable the Company to mmimise these risks

Chantable and Political Donations

The Company has not made any charitable or political donations during the year (2010 ml}




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Statement of disclosure of mformation to auditors

In so far as each director mn office at the date that the directors’ report 1s approved 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which
the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director order tc make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhsh that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

On behalf of the board

K P Cracknell
Director
29 March 2012




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373

INDEFPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Lloyds TSB General Insurance Limited for the year ended-31 December 2011 which comprise
the Balance Sheet, the Statemment of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Accounting Polictes and the related notes The financial reporung framework that has been applied in theiwr preparation 1s applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors” Responsibilities (set out on page 4), the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion
on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opiions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent 1n writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance

that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
" the accounting policies are appropnate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinon on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

*  give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended,

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

s  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006

In our opinien the information grven in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are requred to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requures us to report to you 1f, it our
opinion

«  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retumns adequate for our audyt have not been received from branches not wissted
by us, or

o the financral statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
o  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

e we have not received all the information and explanauons we require for our audit

David Roper (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

29 March 2012




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373
BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note

ASSETS
Intangible insurance assets 5
Financial assets held at fair value through mcome

Collective Investment Schemes 6,7

Debt secunties 6,7
Loans and receivables including insurance recervables 78
Reinsurance assets 9,13
Cash and cash equivalents 6,7,10
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to the Company’s equity holder
Ordinary share capial 11
Retained earnings 12
Total equity
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 13
Provisions for other hiatnlities and charges 14
Trade and other payables 15
Deferred income tax 16
Income tax hability 29

Total habilities

Total equity and habihties

The notes on pages 11 to 49 form an integral part of these financral stalements

The financial stalements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2012 and were signed on 11s behalf by

\ABE e

K P Cracknell
Durector

2011 2010
70,614 83,509
334,781 405,530
50,998 85,004
337,999 350,476
13,821 12,102
53,068 49,117
861,281 986,138
61,700 61,700
197,989 199,858
259,689 261,558
452,584 565,791
2,578 1,187
79,773 99,678
21,436 22,410
45,221 35,214
601,592 724,580
861,281 986,138




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
{All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note
Insurance contract premium revenue 18
Insurance contract premium ceded to reinsurers 18
Net premium revenue 18
Investment mcome 19
Net fair value gains on financial assets held at fair value through mcome 20
Toetal Income
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenscs 21
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses recoverable from reinsurers 21
Net insurance claims
Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts 22
Expenses for marketing and adminustration 22
Total expenses
Results of operating activities and prefit before income tax
Income tax expense 24

Profit for the year attributable to equity holder of the Company

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive ncome for the year attnbutable to equty holder of the
Company

All the amounis above are 1n respect of continuing operations

The notes on pages 11 10 49 form an integral part of these financial statements

2011 2010
586,786 676,277
(25,594) (21,642)
561,192 654,635

4,568 5,139
6,067 4,868
571,827 664,642
(143,146) (256,823)
1 (828)
(143,145) (257,651)
(197,090) (225,167)
(57,214) (50,878)
(397.449) (533,696)
174,378 130,946
(44,247) (35,986)
130,131 94,960
130,131 94,960




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
{All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note
Year ended 31 December 2010

At begmning of year

Comprehensive mcome for the year and total recogmsed income for
2010

Dividends paid 25

At end of year 11,12
Year ended 31 December 2011
At beginning of year

Comprehensive income for the year and total recogmised income for
2011

Dwvidends paid 25

At end of year 11,12

All retained earnings are distributable excepl as disclosed in Note 12

The noles on pages 11 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements

Attributable to the equity holder of the

Company

Share capital Retamed Total equity

earmings
61,700 223,898 285,598
- 94,960 94,960
(119,000) (119,000)
61,700 199,858 261,558
61,700 199,858 261,558
- 130,131 130,131
- (132,000) (132,000)
61,700 197,989 259,689




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
{All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated by operations

Income tax paid

Net cash generated by operating activities

Cash flows from ivesting activifies

Net disposal/{add:tion) of collective investment schemes, equily and debt secunties
Interest received

Dividend and other income received

Net cash generated /{used) by invesuing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid to company equity holder

Net cash used by financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equvalents

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginming of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The notes on pages 11 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements

Note

26

2011 2010
55,775 60,332
(35,214) (39,884)
20,561 20,448
108,926 (407,443)
4,541 5,138
1,896 2,960
115,363 (399,345)
(132,000} (119,000)
(132,000) {119,000
3,924 (497,897)
49,092 546,989
53,016 49,092

10




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
{All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

General information

Lloyds TSB General Insurance Limited underwrites general insurance nsks, including household and domestic all nsks
insurance, creditor insurance and accident and health insurance marketed pnimanily under the Lloyds TSB brand and sold
predominantly through the Lloyds Banking Group (‘Group’) and corporate partnerships All contracts of insurance are
written in the United Kingdom

21

Summary of sigmificant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of presentation

These financial statements are prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as defined by
IAS 1 They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and bnldings,
investment property, available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets and financial Lizbiliies (including dernivative
mstruments) at fair value through income

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformuty with IFRS requires the use of certamn critical accounting estimates It
also requires management to exercise its judgement 1n the process of applying the Company’s accounung policies The arcas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and esimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed i Note 3

All amounts 1n the notes are rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated
Changes n accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopied by the Company

There are no IFRSs or [FRIC interpretations that are effective for the first ime for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2011 that would be expected to have a matenial impact on the Company

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretanions 1ssued but not effective for the financial year beginning I January 2011
and not early adopted

s Amendments to IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments Disclosures’ on transfers of financial assets, promote transparency in
the reporung of transfer transactions and improves users’ understanding of the risk exposures relating to transfers of
financial assets and the effect of those nisks on an entily’s financial position, particularly those involving securitisation
of financial assets The Company 1s yet to assess the full impact of the amendments and intends to adopt IFRS 7 no later
than the accounting peniod beginming on or after 1 January 2012

e IFRS 9, ‘Financial nstruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recogmtion of financial assets and
financial habilities TFRS 9 was 1ssued 1n November 2009 and October 2010 Tt replaces the parts of 1AS 39 that relate
1o the classificaion and measurement of financial (nstruments 1FRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified nto two
measurement categories those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised cost The determination 15
made at ttial recognition The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing 1ts financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow charactensucs of the instrument For financial habihities, the standard retains
most of the 1AS 39 requirements The main change 1s that, in cases where the far value option 1s laken for financial
habihties, the part of a fair value change due 1o an entity’s own credit nisk 1s recorded 1n other comprehensive income
rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch The Company 15 yet to assess IFRS 9 s
full impact and intends to adopt IFRS Y no later than the accounuing period beginning on or after 1 January 2013

11




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(All amounis n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting pohcies (continued)
211 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (contimued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year beginmng I January 2011
and not early adopied {contintued)

e IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’, builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determinming factor 1 whether an entity should be ncluded within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company The standard provides additional guidance to assist i the determunation of control where this 15 difficult to
assess The Company 1s yet to assess IFRS 10’s full impact and intends to adopt [FRS 10 no later than the accounting
peniod begimmning on or after 1 January 2013

e IFRS 11, ‘Jownt arrangements,’” 1s a more realisuic reflection of jownt arrangements by focusing on the rights and
obligations of the arrangement rather than 1ts legal form There are two types of jomt arrangement joint operations and
jomnt ventures Jomt operations arise where a jount operator has rights (o the asscts and obligations relating to the
arrangement and hence accounts for 1t interest 0 assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses Jomnt ventures anse where
the joint operator has rights to the net assets of the arrangement and hence equity accounts for its interest Proportional
consolidation of jomnt ventures 1s no longer allowed The Company is yet to assess IFRS 11°s full impact and intends to
adopt IFRS 11 no later than the accounting pertod beginning on or after 1 January 2013

e [FRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests m other entities’, includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles
The Company 1s yet to assess IFRS 12’s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 12 no later than the accounting period
beginming on or after 1 January 2013

e IFRS 13, ‘Farr value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
defimtion of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs
The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair value
accpunting but provide guidance on how 1t should be applied where 1its use 15 already tequired or permutted by other
standards within IFRSs or US GAAP The Comparty 15 yet to assess IFRS 13’s full impact and mtends to adopt [FRS 13
no later than the accounting period begmning on or after 1 January 2013

+ Amendment to 1AS 12, ‘Income taxes’, on deferred tax currently requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating
to an asset depending on whether the entity expects lo recover the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale It
can be difficult and subjective to assess whether recovery will be through use or through sale when the asset 1s
measured using the fair value model in IAS 40, ‘Investment property’ This amendment therefore ntroduces an
exceplion to the existing principle for the measurement of deferred tax assets or labilities ansing on investment
property measured at fair value As a result of the amendments, SIC 21, ‘Income taxes - recovery of revalued non-
depreciable assets’, will no longer apply to investment properties carried at fair value The amendments also incorporate
mto 1AS 12 the remaiming guidance previously contained 1n SIC 21, which 1s withdrawn The Company 1s yet to assess
1AS 12 s full impact and 1ntends to adopt IAS 12 no later than the accounting period begtnring on or after 1 January
2012

s 1AS 19, ‘Employee benefits’, was amended in June 2011 The impact on the Company will be as follows to ehminate
the corridor approach and recogmise all actuarial gans and losses 1n OCI as they occur, to immediately recognise all
past service costs, and to replace mterest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that 1s
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit hability (asset) The Company s yet to assess the full
impact of the amendments and ntends to adopt IAS 12 no later than the accounung period beginning on or after 1
January 2013

12




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
{All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

21

22

Summary of sigmificant accounting policies (continued)

Changes 1n accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

{c) Measurement bases used in the preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements are presented i Sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand They are prepared on the historical cost
basis

Non-current assets are slated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

The preparaticn of financial statements i confornuty with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the applicauon of policies and reported amounts of assets, habihties, income and expenses The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed (o be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of wiich form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The esumates and underlymg assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are
recogmsed in the peried in which the estimate 15 revised 1f the revision affects only that peniod, or in the period of the revision

and future periods 1f the revision affects both current and future periods

Consolidation of subsidianes has not been undertaken as the Company forms part of Lloyds Banking Group, which prepares
a group set of consolidated financial statements under [FRS

Segment reporfing

As a non-publicly traded company (wholly-owned by Lloyds Banking Group plc), the Company has chosen not (o disclose
segmental information

13




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued}
(All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

23

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets

The Company classifies 1ts financial assets mio the following categeries financial assets at fair value through mncome and
loans and receivables The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired Management
determunes the classification of its financral assets at imtial recogmtion

() Financal assets at fair value through income

The Company designates all 1ts equity and debt secunittes, including collective investment schemes, at fair value through
profit and less on mception

Financial assets destgnated as at fair value through imcome at inception are those that are managed and whose performance 13
evaluated on a farr value basis Information about these financial assets 15 provided nternally on a fair value basis to the
Company’s key management personnel The Company’s investment strategy 15 to mvest in equity and debt securiuies, and to
evaluate them with reference to their fair values Assets that are part of these portfotios are designated upon imtial recogmtion
at fair value through profit or loss (sce Note 4 3 for additional details on the Company’s portfolio structure)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recogmsed on the trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset Financial assets carried at far value through income are imtially recogmised at fair value and
transaction cosls are expensed 1n the statement of comprehensive income Financial assets are derecogmsed when the night to
recerve cash flows from the investments has expired or has been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all
nisks and rewards of ownership

The fair values of listed investments n an active market are based on current bid prices The fair values of unlisted collective
ivestment schemes are determined by using the mark to market values of the individual underlymg holdings of the schemes
If the market for a financial asset 1s not active, the fund manager establishes fair value by using valuation technigues These
inctude the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models

(b) Loan and receivables
Loans and receivables are recogmsed imnally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effecive
interest method, less provision for imparrment Loans and receivables are non-denivative financial assets with fixed or

delermmable payments that are not quoted on an active market Loans and receivables are included in Insurance and other
recetvables on the balance sheel and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review

14




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCQUNTS (continued)
{All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

24

’

Summary of sigmficant accounting poticies (continued)
Impairment of assets
(a) Financial assets carned al amortised cost

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 15 objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets 1s impaired  Impaiwrment losses are ncurred only if there 15 objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that have occurred after mitial recogmiton of the asset and that loss event has an wmpact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be relably estimated  Objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets 1s impaired 1ncludes observable data that comes to the attention of the Company
about the following events

6] sigmficant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or debtor, ]
{11) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency n payments,

() it becoming probable that the wssuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,

(V) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset, or

v) observable data indicating that (here 15 a measurable decrease (n the esimated future cash flow from a group of

financial assets since the imtial recogmiuion of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be 1dentified with the
individual financial assets in the group, ncluding

¢  adverse changes in the payment status of 1ssuers or debtors 1n the group, or
e national or local econommic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets tn the group

The Company first assesses whether objecuve evidence of impairment exists for individually sigmficant financial assets and 1f
no such indvidual impairment exists it collecuvely considers impairments of groups of assets with similar credit rnisks

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 1s recogrised 1n the statement of comprehensive income for the
periad

If 1n a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurning after the impairment was recogmsed (such as improved credit rating}, the previously recogmsed imparrment loss 1s
reversed by adjusting the allowance account The amount of the reversal 1s recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive
income for the peniod

(b) Non-Financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe are not subject 1o amortisation and are lested annually for imparment  Assets that
are subject to amorusation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes m circumstances mdicate that the
carrving amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset s fair value less costs to sell and
value 1nuse For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows
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Summary of sigmficant accounting pohicies {continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash i hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly hiquid investments
with eriginal matunties of three moaths or less, bank overdrafts where there 15 a nght of offset and accrued mnterest

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there 15 no obligation to transfer cash or other assets

Insurance contracts

The Company 1ssues msurance contracts Insurance contracts are those that transfer significant insurance risk  As a general
guidelime, the Company defines as significant insurance risk the pessimiity of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an
msured event which are more than 10% of the benefits payable 1f the insured event were not to occur

(a) Recogntion and measurement

All of the msurance contracts 1ssued by the Company are short-term contracts categonsed as household and domestic all
risks, creditor or accident and health

Household and domestic all nisks insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company s customers for damage suffered to
their properties and their contents

Creditor contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers against the cost to the msured of sustaning injury, suffering
sickness or infirmity, suffering loss of income due to causes that may or may not be specified (n the contract, where the
benefits payable under the contract relate to toans, credit card balances or other debts {excluding mortgage indemmity)

Accident and health insurance contracts mamly compensate the Company’s customers with fixed pecuruary benefits against
costs of the nsured requirng health care for sickness, infirmity ot injuries sustained  Accident and health insurance nsks are
not considered to be a matenal part of the Company s insurance business

For all of these contracts, premums are recogmised as revenue proporuonally over the peniod of coverage Written premiums,
gross of commussion payable to intermedianecs, comprise the premiums on contracls entered nto i a financial year,
regardless of whether such amounts may relate 1n whole or in part to a later financial year, exclusive of insurance premium
tax and duties levied on premiums The amount of insurance premium tax due by the Company which has not been paid over
to Customs & Excise as at the balance sheet date 15 included as a hability under the heading “Trade and other creditors™ The
portion of premum received on n-force contracts that relates 10 unexpired risks al the balance sheet date 15 reported as the
unearned premums habilhity

Premiums writlen include adjustments for any differences between unearned premums recorded m prior years and amounts
ultimately received Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for n the same accounting period as the premiums for the

inwards insurance business

Premiums collected by mtermedianes, but not yet received, are assessed based on estimates from underwnung or past
experience, and are included in premiums written
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Summary of significant accounting pohcies (continued)

Insurance contracts (continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive tncome as mcurred based on the
estimated hability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract helders  They include
direct and indirect claims settlement costs and anse from events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date even 1f they
have not yel been reported (o the Company

The Company does not discount 1ts habilines for unpaid claims

The provision for outstanding claims represents the ultimate cost of settling all claims, including direct and indiwrect claims
settlement costs, ansing from events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date  This provision comprises an amount for
the cost of claims notified but not settled and for claims mcurred but not yet reported

The provision for claims incurred but not reported at the date of the balance sheet and the related claims setilement expenses
together with the anucipated remnsurance and other recoveries, 1s made on the basis of the best information currently
available, having regard, n particular, to past claims experience Subsequent information and events may result in the
ultimate Liabilites being more than, or less than, the amount provided for the estimated net habilities at a particular balance
sheet date The estimales made are regularly reviewed 1n the hight of subsequent information and any resulting adjustments
are reflected m the earnings of the year i which the adjustments are made

() Deferred policy acquisibion costs ( DAC’ ) — Intangible insurance assets

Commussions and other acquisiion costs that vary with and are directly related to securing new contracls and renewing
existing contracts are capitahised as an ntangible asset (DAC), where they can be identified separately and measured rehably
and 1t 1s probable that they will be recovered  All other costs are recogmsed as expenses when incurred  The DAC 1s
subsequently amortised in hine with earned premiums

(c) Liabihity adequacy test

At each balance sheet date Lhability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance contract habihities, net
of related DAC In performmg these tests current best estmates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and
administration expenscs as well as investment income from the assets backing such habilibes are used  Any deficiency 1s
immedately charged to profit or loss mitially by writing off DAC and by subsequently establishing a provision for losses
ansing from hability adequacy tests Any DAC written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be reinstated

{d) Remnsurance contracts held

Contracts entered nto by the Company with remsurers under which the Company 15 compensated for losses on one or more
contracts 1ssued by the Company and that meet the classification requirement for msurance coniracts above are classified as
remsurance contracts held  Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract hotder 1s another
msurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts

The benefits to which the Company 1s entitled under its remnsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets
These assets consist of short-term balances due from remsurers as well as longer term receivables that are dependant on the
expected claims and benefits ansing under the related reinsurance contracts Amounts recoverable from or due to remsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the remnsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the
terms of each reinsurance contract Remsurance Liabilwties are primarily premiums payable for remnsurance contracts and are
recogmsed as an expense when due

The Company assesses Its rensurance assels for impawrment on a quarterly basis  If there 1s objective evidence that the
remsurance assel ts impaired, the Company reduces the carrymg amount of the reinsurance asset to s recoverable amount
and recogmses that impairmeni loss in the statement of comprehensive income for the period  The Company gathers the
objective evidence that a reinsurance assel 1s 1mpaired using the same process adopted for loans and recetvables  The
impairment loss ts also calculated following the same method used for these financial assels These processes are described
i Note 2 4
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Summary of sigmificant accounting pohcies {continued)

Insurance contracts (continued)
(e) Recervables and payables related 10 insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recogmised when due Premiums are deemed receivable m full for the whole peniod of an
insurance contract, upon mception  These mnclude amounts due to and from agents, brokers and insurance contract holders

If there 1s objective evidence that the msurance recevable 15 impaired, the Company reduces the carrymg amount of the
insurance receivable accordingly and recogmises the imparment loss i the statement of comprehensive mcome The
Company gathers the objective evidence that an msurance recervable 1s impaired using the same process adopied for loans
and receivables The imparment loss 1s also calculated following the same method used for these financial assets These
processes are described 1n Note 2 4

() Claims equalisation reserve

An equalisation reserve 1s held as an undistributable part of retained earnings as required under FSA rules This reserve 1s not
allowed under IFRS and therefore 1s not inchuded 1n the Balance sheet as a hability (Note 12)

Income taxes, ncluding deferred income taxes

The current income lax charge 15 calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted al the balance sheet
date Current mncome tax which 1s payable on taxable profits 1s recognsed as an expense n the period m which the profits
anise  Deferred tax 15 provided n full, using the hability method, on temporary differences anising between the tax bases of
assets and liabiltiies and their carrying amounts i the financial statements Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or announced by the balance sheet date that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 15
realised or the deferred tax habiity 1s settled  Deferred tax assets are recogmsed where 1t 1s probable that future taxable profit
will be available agamst which the temporary differences can be uulised, and are not discounted
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Summary of sigmificant accounting policies (continued)

Pension and other post-retirement obligations

The Company’s ultimate parent company operates a number of group-wide post-retirement benefit schemes for employees
including those employees of the Company, including defined benefit and defined contribution pension A defined benefit
scheme 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit thal an employee will recerve on retirement, dependent on
one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary A defined contribution plan 15 2 pension plan into which the
Group pays fixed contributions, there 1s no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions

Full actuanal valuations of the Group s principal defined benefit schemes are camied out every three years with intenm
reviews (n the mlerveming years, these valuations are updated to 31 December each year by qualified independent actuanes
For the purposes of these annual updates scheme assets are included at their fair value and scheme liabiliies are measured on
an actuarsal basis using the projected unit credit method adjusted for unrecogmsed actuarial gains and losses The defined
benefit scheme liabihties are discounted using rates equivalent to the market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality
corporate bonds that are denommated 1n the currency 1 which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms 1o matunty
approximating o the terms of the related pension

The Company’s share of the resulung net surplus or deficit, determined on the basis of the Company’s cash contribuiions into
the schemes for employee members {calculated in accordance with the scheme rules) 15 reflected in the Company’s balance
sheet {see Note 15) The Company’s statement of comprehensive income cludes the Company’s share of current service
cost of providing pension benefits, the expected return on the schemes’ assets, net of expected adminstration costs. and the
mterest cost on the schemes' liabiities The Company’s share of actuanal gamns and losses ansing from experence
adjustments and changes m actuanal assumptions are not recognised unless the cumulative unrecogmsed gam or loss at the
end of the previous reporting period exceeds the greater of 10 per cent of the scheme assets or liabilities (‘the corridor
approach®) In these circumstances the excess 15 charged or crediled to the statement of comprehensive income over the
employees’ expected average remaining working lives Past service costs are charged immediately to the statement of
comprehensive income, unless the charges are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of
ume (the vesting period) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period

The Company’s balance sheet includes its share of the net surplus or deficit, being the difference between the fair value of
scheme assets and the discounted value of scheme habilities at the balance sheet date adjusted for any cumulative
unrecogmsed actuanal gans or losses Surpluses are only recognised to the extent that they are recoverable through reduced
contributions 1n the future or through refunds from the schemes

The Company recogmises the effect of material changes to the terms of the Group’s defined benefit pension plans which
reduce future benefits as curtailments, gans and losses are recognised 10 the statement of comprehensive mcome when the

curtailments occur

The costs of the Company’s contributions towards the Group s defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income 10 the period in whech they fall due
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Summary of sigmificant accounting pohcies (continued)

Share-based compensation

The Company’s ultumate parent company operates a number of group-wide equity-settled, share-based compensation plans m
respect of services recerved from certamn of its employees The Company’s share of the value of the employee services
recewved 1n exchange for equity instruments granted under these plans 1s recogmsed as an expense over the vesting peniod of
the instruments, with a corresponding mcrease i equity This expense 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the
number of equity instruments that are expected to vest The fair value of equity instruments granted 1s based on market
prices, If available, at the date of grant In the absence of market prices, the fair value of the instruments at the date of grant s
estimated using an appropriate valuation technique, such as a Black-Scholes option pricing model The determination of fair
values excludes the impact of any non-market vesung conditions, which are included in the assumptions used to estimale the
number of options that are expected to vest Al each balance sheet date, this esumate 15 reassessed and if necessary revised
Any revision of the ongmal estimate 1s recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income over the remaining vesting
period, together with a corresponding adjustment to equity  Cancellations by employees of contributions to the Group's Save
As You Earn plans are treated as non-vesting conditions and 1n accordance with the revised IFRS 2 the Group recognises, in
the year of cancellation, the amount of the expense that would have otherwise been recognised over the remainder of the
vesting peniod  Modifications are assessed at the date of modificaion and any incremental charges are charged to the
statemenl of comprehensive (ncome over any remammng vesling penod

Provisions, contingent habilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recogmsed n respect of present obligations ansing from past events where it 15 more likely than not that
outflows of resources will be required to setile the obligations and they can be reliably estumated

Contingent liabilities are possible obligauons whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events or those
present obligations where the outflows of resources are uncertamn or cannot be measured rehiably  Conungent habdities are
not recognised 1n the financial statements but are disclosed unless they are remote

Contingent asscts usually anse from unptanned or other unexpected events that give nise to the pessibility of an inflow of
economic benefits Contingent assets are not recogmsed in financial statements since this may result in the recogmtion of
mcome that may never be realised However, when the realisation of income 15 virtually certain, then the related asset 1s not a

contimgent assel and s recogmitton 1s appropriate A contingent asset 1s disclosed where an inflow of economuc benefits 15
probable

Revenue recogmition — other than msurance contracts

Income received from fixed interest investments and deposits 1s accrued for on a day to day basis using the effective interest
rate method Al such income 1s received and reported on a gross basis When an interest bearing asset 15 impaired the
carrying amount 15 reduced to its recoverable amount, bemg the esumated future cash flow discounted at the oniginal effective

interest of the asset and the discount ts unwound as investment income

Dividends are recerved and reported net of the associated tax and are accrued when the stock becomes ex-dividend within the
year Dividend income 1s included within *Net fair value gains on financial assets held at fair value through income’

Investment gains either realised or unreahised are reflected 1n the statement of comprehensive income and are calculated as the
difference between either sale proceeds or market value and ongimal cost

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company s equity sharcholder 1s recogmsed in equity n the peniod 1n which the dividend 15 pard
Trade payables

Trade payables pnimarily relate (o Labilities associated wath insurance contracts and their accounting policies are disclosed 1n
Note 27
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Cnitical accountng estimates and judgements m applying accounting policies

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities within the next
financial year Esumates and judgmenis are regularly evaluated and based on historical expenience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

Outstanding claims

The estmation of the ultmate liabihty ansing from claims made under insurance contracts 1s the Company’s most critical
accounting estimate There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered 1n the esimate of the hability that
the Company wil! ultimately pay for such claims

In particular, household and domesuc all nsks msurance policies are exposed to claims for subsidence The Company
subscribes to the Association of British Insurers (ABI) Subsidence “Change of Insurer’ Claims Agreement which places an
obligauon upen 1t to deal with subsidence claims

Estimation of the ulimate cost of subsidence claims 1s complex [t 1s difficult to know the incurted date of a subsidence
claim, indeed the claim may have been incurred over a period of ume rather than on one particular day Because of ths,
subsidence figures cannot reliably be spht by accident month  Significant factors that affect the trends that influence
subsidence performance stem mamly from the impact of the much drier weather condiions, tree root activity, the upturn m
the housing markel and the additional extensive press publicity gencrating anxiety and overreactions to minor crackmg  Due
to this uncertamnty, it 1s not possible to determine the future development of subsidence claims with the same degree of
reliabulity as with other types of claim

Where there 1s insufficient tnformation to determine the required provision, stabistical techmiques are used which take mto
account the cost of claims that have recently been settled and make assumpuions about the future development of the
outstanding cases Simular statistical techniques are used to determine a provision for claims incurred but not reported at the
balance sheet date  Finally, an allowance 1s made for the expected probability of a subsidence event occurring which could
give nise Lo such habilibes

Due to the economic chimate unemployment claims have increased significantly m the past few years compared 1o previous
years and reporting and payment patterns have been disrupted by this and by process changes We would also expect a
secondary, though smaller impact to occur within sickness claims  The normal approach is to use past data (o denve claims
costs, but m the past few years the potential for patterns changing has been recognised and appropriate adjustments have been
made as detaded 1n Note 4 22 (b}

While management believes that the hability carried at year end 1s adequate, the application of statistical techniques requires
sigmificant judgment An increase of 10% 1n the cost of all claims would result 1n the recogmtion of an additional cost of
£16 041m net of remnsurance (2010 £24 689m) Simlarly, an increase of 10% 1n the number of all claims would result in the
recognition of an additiona! cost of £17 317m net of reinsurance (2010 £26 149m) A 5% increase in the inflation rate of
claims would result in the recognition of an additional cost of £5 690m net of reinsurance (2010 £8 964m)

41

Rusk management

The Company s activities expose 1t to a variety of risks The Company’s overall sk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of non-life insurance and financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s
financial performance

Risk governance

The board of directors bears responsibility for the management of nsk in the Company including approval of documented
insurance and other prudennal nsk polictes and nisk appetite limats as well as monitoring adherence to such policies Risk
management activities are delegated to the Operational Risk Committee and (o the relevant business area direclors Oversight
15 carned out by the Insurance Group s nisk management function which acts independently The Company complies with the
Group nsk management framework, full details of which are pubhished in the ultimate parent company accounts
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Risk management (centinued)

Insurance nsk

The risk under any one insurance contract 1s the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of
the resulung claim By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable

The principal nsk that the Company faces under 1ts nsurance contracts is thal the actual claims payments exceed the carrying
amount of the msurance liabilittes  This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims 1s greater than estimated
Insurance events are random and the actual number of claims will vary from year to year from the esumate established using
statistical techmques  When submutung a claim, proof will be needed The Company follows any principles set up by the
ABI and FSA in respect of handling clarms  Claims iaformation 1s retained to help with the estimauon of future claim
payments and nisk pricing

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative vanability about the
expected outcome will be  In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affecled across the board by a change
1n any subset of the portfolio  The Company has developed its msurance underwriting sirategy to ensure that within each of
its 1isk categories sufficiently large populations of risks are achieved to reduce the vanability of the expected outcome

4 2 1 Household and domestic all nsks
(a) Frequency and seventy of claims

For household and domestic all risks msurance contracts, climatic changes appear to be giving rise to mere frequent and
severe extreme weather evenis and their consequences Underwriing hmts are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection
cnitena For example, the Company can charge a premium appropriate to the risk presented, decline 1o underwnte certan
applications at sale, impose policy terms and conditions or higher excesses and, n the majority of cases, has the night not to
renew mdividual pohcies The Company also has the night to reject the payment of a fraudulent claim Insurance contracts
also entutle the Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (1 e subrogation}

The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal and also has the ability to impose excesses These contracts are
underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the properties and conteats insured Claim payment hmus are always
included for contents insurance (o cap the amount payable on occurrence of the msured event  Coslts of rebuilding properties
or replacement of, or indemnity for, contents, are the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies  The
greatest likelihood of significant losses on these contracts anses from storm, fire, flood damage, freeze and subsidence The
Company has remsurance cover for catastrophes to himit losses in any one year from large single events The maximum loss
for a single event up to £767 1m 1s £85 2m across Lloyds Banking Group General Insurance (2010 £720m 1s £63m (£56m
for flood)) The Company has also purchased aggregate loss cover to mitigate the effects of multiple events

The insurance nisk arising from these contracts 1s not concentrated in any of the regions n the UK n which the Company
operates, and there 1s a balance between buildings and contents in the overall portfoho.

(b} Sources of uncertamnty 1n the estimation of future claim payments

Household and domesuc all nisks claims are analysed separately for each penil  The development of accumulations of weather
claims 1n a single catastrophic event 1s analysed separately The shorter settlement pertod for non-subsidence/liability claims
allows the Company to achieve a higher degree of certainty about the estimated cost of these claims, and relauvely small
Incurred but not Reported (‘IBNR') reserve 1s held at year-end However, the longer time needed to assess the emergence of

a subsidence or Lability claim makes the estimation process more uncertain for these claims

Further information on risk management 1s disctosed 1in Note 13
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Risk management (continued)
4,2.2 Creditor
(a) Frequency and severity of claims

Sigmficant penils and risk factors include unemployment, interest rates and the UK economic outlook generaily The majonity
of financial loss business underwritten by the Company is payment protecuton, which has accident, sickness and
unemployment as its main pertls -

The claim amount paid 1s fixed at the level of repayment and 1s capped for a maximum duration for most contracts  There are
waibing and exclusion periods during which no claim will be accepted In addition, 1n the case of sickness, any pre-existing
health conditions will not be covered

The msurance nisk ansing from these contracts 1s not concentrated n any of the regions in the UK 1 which the Company
operates A credit scoring system and procedures are i place to approve loans on which imsurance will be offered

Unemployment claims during the year have continued to fall from their peak 1 2009, though remain higher than prior to the
recession, these changes coupled with changes (o internal processes to cope with increased demand have given rise to
distorted reporting and payment patterns so the Company has had to apply more judgement than usual to reflect that history 1s
not as predictive i current circumstances  In addition the Company expects that the average duration that claims will remain
in payment will continue to be sensitive to prevailing economic condittons and the stressful conditions of the recession will
also produce a knock-on effect on the duration of sickness claims so an allowance has been made to allow for this in the
reserves

(b) Sources of uncertainty n the estimation of future claim payments

The Company estimation processes reflect all the factors that influence the amount and uming of cash flows from these
contracts The shorter settlement period for these claims would normally allow the Company to achieve a higher degtee of
certainty about the estimated cost of claims but as stated above there remains greater uncertainty this year even as claims
reduce, however, there s stil a relatively small IBNR held at year-end

To reduce the uncertainty the Company has been modelling national economic data, notably unemployment inflows
and their relationship to creditor claims, as well as a detailed analysis of claimn transittonal probabihities This latter
data has been showing a changing proportion of claimants transitioning to later claim duration periods Data from the
recession 1n the early 1990’s and a range of scenarios was also used to assess the reasonableness of the reserve
produced

The Company ceased writing new creditor business i 2010, consequently the book 1s now m run-off which i uself
establishes an additional source of uncertainty in analysing the behaviours of a duimimishing book against a historically stable
portfolo

(c) Unexpired nisk reserve

An unexpired nisk reserve (URR) 1s required to be established when the unearned premwum reserve belonging (o an
identifiable segment of business 1s insufficient 1o cover the estinated cost of all future claims and expenses which will attach
to that unearned business

An analysis by segment was carried out and determined that an URR of £2 4m 1n respect of the smgle premium business
(Loan Protection and Asset Finance) was required This was due to the expectation that future claims expertence would
deteriorate as a resull of anti-selection caused by the PP1 mis-selling judicial review

Further mformation on insurance risk management 1s disclosed in Note 13

Financal nsk

The Company 1s exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabihiues, rewinsurance assets and msurance
liabilities In particular, the key financial risk 1s that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient (o fund the

obligations ansing from its msurance contracts Other mmportant components of financial nisk are market risk (primanty
interest rate risk), credut sk and hquidity nsk
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Risk management (continued)
Fancial nsk (contimued)
4 3 1 Market rnisk

The Company 1s exposed to market nsk {including nterest rate nisk) through its portfolio of investments which consist of
sterling denominated debi secunittes and shares 1n a collective investment scheme, all of which are exposed to gencral and
specific market movements An addiuional source of market nisk 1s the mismatch between payout patterns of liabilities and the
assets backing those Liabilittes However, this component 1s a minor source of risk for the Company as the majonty of assets
as well as habilities are of a short lerm nature

The Company’s objective in managing market nsk 15 1o maximise returns from (nvestments whilst ensuring regulatory
requirements are met and adequate financial security 1s mamtamed on an ongoing basis

1) Interest rate risk

The Company has a defined investment policy which sets out himits on the Company’s exposure 1o 1ts mvestments With the
exception of the collective investment schemes, imvestments held are all hsted and traded on recognised stock exchanges
The collective investment schemes are unhsted and are authonised and regulated by the FSA and fall under the EU directive
on Undertakings for Collective Investmenlt 1n Transferable Securibes Investment management meetings are held regularly
where the Company s investments are reviewed Exposure to mvestments are monitored by the finance function i order to
ensure compliance with internal and relevant external regulatory hmuts for solvency purposes and to allow additional
measures o be taken tf Limuts are breached

The market risk in the investment portfolio 1s measured using ‘Value at Risk’ (VaR) methodology VaR 1s defined as the
maximum loss over a given time horizon, with a defined tow probabulity that the actual loss on the portfolio will be larger A
5% VaR with a one year time horizon 1s used to set the Company’s tolerance to market risk A loss equal 10 VaR 1s the worst
case loss considered for the management of markel risk

The VaR calculation allows for dependencies between the values of investments 1n the portfolio Its inputs include 15 years of
historic movements 1n the values of appropriate market indices and interest rates

The VaR for the Company as at 31 December 2011 was £5 $m (2010 £5 6m) The VaR 1s consistent with the previous year
as a result of a shght reduction 1n the VaR for ARBF and direct holdings being counterbalanced by a shight increase n the
VaR of the Investment Cash Fund

The Company underwriies predominantly short-term msurance habiliies, 1€ less than 5 years, which are not drectly
sensitive 10 the level of markel interest rates as they are undiscounted and contractually non-interesi bearing

2011 2010

A change of interest rate by +/- 1% would have the following effect on the value
of the Company’s investments -/+ £0 3m -+ £07m

(11) Price Risk

The Company's price nisk exposure relates to financial assets and liabilines whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, principally investment securities

Such mvestment securities are subject to price nisk due to changes 1n market values of instruments ansing esther from factors
specific to individual instruments or their 1ssuers or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market

The Company s price nisk policy requires 1t to manage such nisks by setting and momiloring objecuves and constraints on
mvestments, diversificauon plan, limils on mvestment in each country, sector and market, and careful and planned use of
derivative struments The price risk on mvestment securities can be actively managed through the use of derivative financial
mstruments to mitigate the nisk of adverse market movements The Company did not exercise this oplion at any point mn the
year and has none n force at the year end
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4 Risk management (contiued)

4 3 1 Market nsk (continued)

The Company holds investments appropniate 1o the timing, amount and level of uncertainty of 11s insurance contract habilities
as shown 1n the following table, which recanciles the balance sheet to the categories used i the Company s management of

financial nsk

2011

Intangible 1nsurance assels

Financial assets held at fair value through income
Collective Investment Schemes - unlisted
Debt securities - histed

Insurance receivables

Other recewvables

Reinsurance assels

Cash and cash equivalents

Insurance contracts and payables
Provisions for other habihties and charges
Trade and other habiliies

Deferred income tax

Income tax hability

2010

Intangible msurance assets

Financial assets held at fair value through income
Collecuve Investment Scheme - unhsted
Debt secunities - histed

Insurance receivables

Other receivables

Reinsurance assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Insurance contracts and payables
Provisions for other Liabilities and charges
Trade and other hiabilites

Deferred income tax

Income tax hability

) Other
financial
Insurance assels & Other assets

contracts liabilities & habiliies Total
70,614 - - 70,614
103,791 230,990 - 334,781
50,998 - - 50,998
234,106 - - 234,106
- 103,893 - 103,893
13,821 - - 13,821
222 52,846 - 53,068
473,552 387,729 - 861,281
452,584 - - 452,584
- - 2,578 2,578
20,968 46,694 12,111 79,773
- - 21,436 21,436
. - 45,221 45221
473,552 46,694 81,346 601,592

Other

financial

Insurance assels & Other assets

contracts liabilities & habihities Total
83,909 - - 83,909
133,971 271,559 - 405,530
85,004 - - 85,004
252,747 - - 252,747
- 97,729 - 97,729
12,102 - - 12,102
9,447 39,670 - 49,117
577,180 408,958 - 986,138
565,791 - 565,791
- - 1,187 1,187
11,389 76,592 11,997 99,978
- - 22,410 22,410
_ 35,214 35,214
577,180 76,592 70,808 724,580
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Risk management (continued)
43 2 Credit nisk
Credit risk 1s the risk of loss 1f another party fails to perform its obligations or fails to perform them in a timely fashion

Management considers that the Company’s only sigmficant petenuial credit risk exposures are from reinsurance and financial
assets held at fair value through income Adequate and effective procedures are i place 10 milagate these exposures and al}
the other sources of credit nisk identified by the business Credit risk exposure from 1nsurance receivables 1s not considered to
be significant, as the risk 1s diversified across a large volume of policyholders for all products and the amount of unpaid
premums at the balance sheet date 1s not significant

(1) Reinsurance credit risk

The Company’s nsk transfer policy addresses the management of reinsurance credit risk and 1s authonised by the Finance
Director Only remnsurers with a mimumum credit rating of ‘A-" will be accepted The Company also requires a “special
termmation clause™ 1n all contracts allowing a reinsurer to be replaced mid-term, mn the event therr security rating s
downgraded below an acceptable level during the period of the reinsurance contract

Reinsurance claims recoveries management information 1s supplied to the Finance Director by the reinsurance broker The
Company’s actuanial function momtors the status of claims made on reinsurance policies

(1) Investment credit sk

The Company’s investment policy sets rules himiting exposure to concentrations of risk as a result of aggregation of exposure
to any single counterparty Setting hmuts rmutigates such credit risk exposure and also ensutes compliance with regulatory
requirements Surplus funds are invested by utilising Scottish Widows fund managers and their adherence to the exposure
limit rules 15 monitored regularly by the Company’s Asset and Liability Commutiee Credit default nisk 1s the most significant
financial nisk, but this 1s mitigated by a very cautious approach lo counterparty risk

The concentration of credit nisk has changed compared (o the prior year as Debt Securities have matured with the Company
continuing to take a very prudent and cautious approach to investment The table below shows the Company’s financial

assels held at fair value through income sphit by credit rating (from Moody’s)

Financial assets held at fair value through income: 2011 2010

Debt securities — histed (Note 7)

AA 44,979 81,031
A 6,019 3,973
Total assets beanng credit nisk 50,998 85,004

Collective Investment Schemes - unlisted

AAA 281,233 352,664
Unrated 53,548 52,866
334,781 405,530

The physical assets (1e assets other than derivauives) in which the collective mvestment schemes invest predominantly
consist of fixed interest securities, index linked securities, money market instruments, cash and deposits

The nvestment 1n collective imvestment schemes decreased during the year as funds were withdrawn from the Investment
Cash Fund which has an ‘AAA’ credit rating ‘The unrated collective investment scheme 15 an Absolute Return Bond Fund
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4 Risk management {continued)
4.3.3 Laquidity risk

The mam objective of the Company’s hquidity nsk policy 1s to ensure that all funds within the Company that serve to fulfil
liabilities are available in sufficiently hquid form to settte liabiliues as and when they fall due Liquidity nisk 1s considered 10
be small, as the Company only holds financial assets for which there 15 a hquid market and that are readily saleable to meet
hquidity needs together with short term cash deposits which are viewed as readily available at short notice

The table below analyses the Company’s insurance and financial habilities into relevant matunity groupings The analysis of
insurance liabilities 15 an estimated maturity analysis of the amount recognised 1n the balance sheet For financial habilities,
the groupings are based on the period remaining at the balance sheet 1o the contractual maturity date The amounts disclosed
i the table are undiscounted

Between Between
Upto3 3andl12 i and 2 Over 2

months months years years Total
At 31 December 2011
Insurance contracts 180,093 231,388 33,299 7,804 452,584
Trade and other payables 67,662 - - - 67,662
At 31 December 2010
Insurance contracts 221,194 283,525 43,185 17,887 565,791
Trade and other payables 87,981 - - - 87,981

4 3 4 Operational nsk

The Company 1s exposed to the nisk of reductions 1w earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from
nadequate or farled nternal processes and systems, or from people related or external events

There are a number of categories of operational risk

e« People risk
The nisk of reductions m earnings andfor value, through financial or reputational loss, from mappropriate staff
behaviour, industrial achon or health and safety 1ssues  Loss can also occur through failure to recruit, retain, train,
reward and incentivise appropnately skifled staff to achieve business objectives and through failure to take appropriate
acuon as a resul of staff underperformance

s Orgamsanonal Infrastructure
Includes all business processes that are "internally facing" 1 e operate between business areas

« Financial Crime ~ External and Internal Fraud
The risk of reductions 1 earnings andfer value, through financial or reputational loss, associated with financial cume
and failure to comply with related legal and regulatory obligations, these losses may include censure, fines or the cost
of hngation

»  Money Laundering & Sanctions
Includes all activity related 1o money laundering, sanctions and counter lerrorism

¢ Legal & Regulatory
The sk of reductions 1 earmings and/for value, through financial or reputational loss, from failing 10 comply with the
laws, regulations or codes applicable, or changes therein

o Customer Treatment

The 1isk of reductions m earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from inappropriate or poor
customer treatment
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Risk management (continued)
4 3 4 Operational rsk (continued)

e Security
The risk of reductions n earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resulting from theft of or damage
to the Group’s assets, the loss, corruption, misuse or theft of the Group’s information, assets or threais or actual harm to
the Group’s people

*  Supplier Management
The r1sk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resulting from all acuivity related
to the agreement and management of services with other parties

+ [T Systems
The msk of reductions in earmmngs and/or value, through all activity related to the development, delivery and
maintenance of effective I'T solutions

o Change
The risk of reductions i earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from change imuiatives failling to
deliver to requirements, budget or timescale or failing to implement change effectively or realise the desired benefits

s Customer Process
The risk of reductions 1 ¢armings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resulting from 1nadequate or
falled mternal processes and systems that are "externally facing", 1e provide a service for external "customers",
including counterparties, corporate clients elc

Exposures

The main sources of operational risk relate to uncertainties created by the changing business and n particular the legal and
regulatory environment in which the Company operates The Company’s legal and regulatory exposure 1s driven by the
sigmficant volume of current legislation and regulation with which 1t has to comply, along with new legislaton and
regulation which needs 1o be reviewed, assessed and embedded into day to day operational and business practices

Risk Framework

There are clear accountabilities and processes in place for reviewing new and changing requirements The Company has a
nominated individual with ‘compliance oversight’ responsibility under FSA rules The role of this individual 1s to advise and
assist management to ensure they mamtain a control structure which achieves compliance with the rules and regulations, to
which the Company 15 subject, and to momtor and report on adherence 1o these rules and regulations

The Company has a comprehensive and consistent operational risk management framework for the tmely identification,
measurement, momtoring and control of operational risk  This framework 15 entirely ahgned to that of the Lloyds Banking
Group to which 1t belongs

Integral to this operational risk managemeni framework 1s a hybrid approach to calculating capital to support unexpected
losses The capital model calculations are driven by internal data which captures past losses, and forward looking scenarios
which value potential future nisk events External industry-wide data 1s collected to help with validating scenarios

Muigation
The Company’s operational sk management framework consists of five key components
1 Idenufication of the key operational risks facing a business area,
2 Evaluatton of the effectiveness of the control framework covering each of the key nisks to which the business area 1s
exposed,
3 Evaluation of the non-financial exposures (e g reputational risk) for each of the key nisks to which the business area
15 exposed,
4 For matenal nisks 1denufied, an estimate of the exposure to financial losses that could result within the coming
financial year, together with an estimate of losses i a stressed environment,
5  For materal risks identified an estimate of exposure to high impact, low frequency events through a scenario

Monutoring

The Company s risk exposure 15 reported through a monthly Consohdated Risk Report ("CRR’) that 15 then aggregated at
divisional level and reported to group misk where a group-wide report 1s prepared The CRR 1s prepared monthly and
discussed at the Company’s Operational Risk Commuttee where any particular concerns may be escalated further to the
division or group nisk functions
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44

45

Risk management (continued)
4.3 4 Operational nsk (contimued)

The Company has adopted a formal approach to operational nisk event escalation  This involves the identification of an
event, an assessment of the materiahty of the event n accordance with a risk event 1mpact matrix and then the appropriate
escalation procedures

Fair value hwerarchy of financial assets

IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable
or unobservable Observable nputs reflect market data obtaned from independent sources, unobservable mmputs reflect the
Company’s assumptions These two types of inputs have created the followmg fair value hierarchy

Level 1 — Quoted prices {unadjusted) 1n active markets for identical assets or habilities This level includes hsied equity
securities and debt mstruments on exchanges Although unhsted, our collective mvestment schemes have a price in an active
market and are classified as Level 1

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices mcluded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, enther directly
(that 15, as prices) or indwectly (that 1s, detived from prices) There 1s not considered 10 be an active market for our debt
securities which are classified as Level 2

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable nputs) This level
includes equity mvestments and debt instruments with significant unobservable components

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available The Company considers relevant and observable
market prices in 1ts valuations where possible

The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value at 31 December 2011

At 31 December 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total balance

Financial assets held at fair value through mcome

- Collecuve Investment Scheme - unhisted 334,781 - - 334,781

- Debit securities - Listed - 50,998 - 50,998
334,781 50,998 - 385,779

At 31 December 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total balance

Financial assets held at fair value through imcome

- Collective Investment Scheme - unlisted 405,530 - - 405,530

- Debt securities - listed - 85,004 - 85,004
405,530 85,004 - 490,534

Capital nsk management

Is
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s abihity to continue as a going concem 1n
order to provide returns for the shareholder and to protect policyholders’ interests, to mantain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital and to comply with capatal requirements 1mposed by 1ts UK regulator, the FSA

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure to meel the objectives above including ensuring sufficient capital 1s held 1o
meet capital requirements, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the shareholder, return capital to the
shareholder, 1ssue new shares, sell assets or raise debt which can be included as available capital for capital requirement
purposes under FSA regulations

Consistent with other msurers 1n the non-life insurance mndustry, the FSA 1imposes two separate capital requirements on the
Company of any significance the Mimmum Capital Requirement {MCR} as defined 1n FSA regulations and reported publicly
in the Company’s Annual FSA Return, and Individual Capital Guidance {ICG), which 1s entity-specific and 15 derrved using a
more nisk-retated approach as also set oul in FSA regulanons The 1CG 1s calculated and updated by the FSA following s
reviews on a regular basis of the Company s own individual capital assessment
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4 Risk management (continued)

45 Capital risk management (continued)

For 1CG purposes, total available capital 1s calculated as ~ Total equity’ as shown i the balance sheet For MCR purposes,
total available capital 1s calculated as ‘Total equity’ as shown in the balance sheet net of the non-distributable reserve as

described 1n Note 12

The Company complied with all externally imposed capital requirements to which 11 was subject throughout the reporting

period

5 Intangible insurance assets

Intangible assets relate to the deferred acquisition costs of acquirng new and renewing existing insurance contracts

Deferred acqusition costs 201 2010
At 1 January 83,909 119,588
Addihons 183,795 189,488
Amortsation through income (Note 22) (197,090) (225,167
At 31 December 70,614 83,909
Available within one year 68,985 75,043
Available after one year 1,629 8,866
6 Financial instruments by category
The accounting policies for financial mstruments have been applied to the line items below
Assets at
fair value Loans and
31 December 2011 through income receivables Total
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through income
- Collective [nvestment Schemes - unlisted 334,781 - 334,781
- Debt securities - histed 50,998 - 50,998
Amounts due from related parties - 103,872 103,872
Cash and cash equivalents - 53,068 53,068
Total 385,779 156,940 542,719
Other
habthties at
amortised cost Total
Laabihties
Trade and other payables 46,694 46,694
Total 46,694 46,694
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Financial instruments by category (continued)

Assets at
fair value Loans and
31 December 2010 through income receivables Total
Assets
Financial assels at fair value through income
- Collective Investment Scheme - unhisted 405,530 - 405,530
- Debt securnities - hsted 85,004 - 85,004
Amounts due from related parties - 97,583 97,583
Cash and cash equivalents - 49,117 49,117
Total 490,534 146,700 637,234
Other
habilities at
amortised cost Total
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 76,592 76,592
Total 76,592 76,592
Financial assets
The Company’s financial assets are summarised below by measurement category i the table below
2011 2010
Fair value through income
Collective Investment Schemes — unhisted 334,781 405,530
Debt securities — listed
- floating rate 50,998 85,004
Total financial assets held at fair value through income 385,779 490,534
[.oans and receivables including nsurance receivables (Note 8) 337,999 350,476
Cash and cash equivalents 53,068 49,117
Total financial assets 776,846 890,127
Available within one year 776,846 800,127
Available after one year - 90,000
The movements on financial assets held at fair value through income are detailed below
. 2011 2010
At 1 January 490,534 81,183
Additions 40,298 585,646
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (147,902) (179,906)
Fair value net gains (excluding net realised gains and losses) 2,864 3,517
(Decrease)/increase 1n accrued mncome (15) 94
At 31 December 385,779 490,534
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8 Loans and recervables mcluding insurance receivables
2011 2010
Recetvables ansing from insurance and remsurance contracts
- due from contract holders 234,106 252,747
Loans and receivables
- amounts due from related parties (Note 29) 103,872 97,583
Prepayments 21 146
Total loans and receivables including insurance receivables 337,999 350,476
Available within one year 337,999 260,476
Available after one year - 90,000
As al 31 December 2011 all overdue Ioans and receivables arising from insurance contracts were provided for 1 full,
9 Reinsurance assets
2011 2010
Rewnsurers’ unearned premium 12,455 10,447
Reinsurers share of claims reserves 1,366 1,655
Reinsurance asscts 13,821 12,102
Available less than one year 12,987 10,590
Available greater than one year 834 1,112

All of the above amounts relate to household and domestic all nisks contracts of tnsurance
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10 Cash and cash equivalents
2011 2010
Cash at bank and in hand 2,052 3,208
Shori-term bank deposits 50,742 36,437
Global Liquidity Fund 222 9,447
Total cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes 53,016 49,092
Accrued nterest 52 25
Total cash and cash equivalents 53,068 49,117
The Global Liquidity Fund 15 a managed ivestment fund mvesting in short term hughly liquid investments, which together
with the Company s financial assets held at farr value through income, 1s managed by a related party (Note 29)
The effective iterest rate on cash and cash equivalents was 0 80% (2010 0 64%)
11 Share capital
2011 2010
Ordinary shares
At 1 January and 31 December
Issued and fully paid — 61 7m shares of £1 each 61,700 61,700
61,700 61,700
The total authorised number of ordinary shares 1s 65 661 mulion (2010 65 661 million) with a nominal value of £1 each
The ordinary shares of £1 each carry the night to receive dividends proposed by the directors and the night to vote at general
meetings Upon winding up, the ordinary shares carry the right to a return of capital together with any surplus n retained
earmings or less any accumulated deficits
1
12 Retammed earmings

2011 2010
Undistrtbutable reserve for unrealised gains on financial assets held at fair value
through mcome {net of corporation tax) 6,263 4,005
Other reserves 191,726 195,853
Total retamed earnings at 31 December 197,989 199,858

Other reserves represent the amount available for dividend distribution to the equity shareholder of the Company except for
£64 312m (2010 £60 595m) which 15 not distributable and must be kept in comphance with the solvency capital regulations
that require the Company 1o retain this as an equahisation reserve  The amount 1n the equalisation reserve becomes available
for distribution when the Company has suffered insurance losses in excess of levels set out wn the relevant solvency capital
regulations
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13 Insurance habilities and reinsurance assets

Gross

Short-term insurance contracts

- claims reported and loss adjustment expenses
- claims incurred but not reported

- unearned premiums

- unexpired risk reserve

Total insurance liabihities - gross

Recoverable from remsurers
Short-term (nsurance contracls

- claims reported

- claims curred but not reported
- uncarned premiums

- unexpired nisk reserve

Total reinsurers’ share of insurance habihities

Net

Short-term (nsurance contracts

- claims reported and loss adjustment expenses
- claims 1ncurred but not reported

- unearned premiums

- unexpired risk reserve

Total insurance habilittes — net
Payable within one year

Payable after more than one year

2011 2010
143,240 213,624
29,930 47,869
277,014 304,298
2,400 .
452,584 565,791
1,366 1,655
12,455 10,447
13,821 12,102
141,874 211,969
29,930 47,869
264,559 293,851
2,400 .
438,763 553,689
398,494 493,728
40,269 59,961

The gross claims reported, claims expenses liabilities and hability for claims incurred but not reported are net of expected
recoveries from salvage and subroganon The amcunts for salvage and subrogation at the end of 2011 and 2010 are noi

material

131 Short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity

The methodology and assumptions used in relaton to determuning the bases of the earned premium and claims provisioning
levels are derived for each individual underwnitien product and contained wathin the appropriate software programmes of the
m-house policy underwriing system  Assumptions are mtended to be neutral esimates of the most hikely or expected

cutcome ( best estimates’)

The levels, adequacies and assumptions used to determine these claims reserves are set out 1n the Quarterly Reserving and

Claims Reports (QRR}

The report from the Head of Actuanal and recommendations are formatly reviewed by the Claims and Reserving Committee

on a quarterly basis

An analysis of methodology and assumptions 1n calculating technical reserves 1s shown below for each sigmificant product

class
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13

131

Insurance habilittes and reinsurance assets (continued)
Short-term msurance contracts — assumptions, changes 1n assumptions and sensitivity (continued})
13.1.1 Household and domestic all nsks

Significant penis and losses factors include acoidental damage, escape of water, subsidence, public habibty and adverse
weather The reserving methodology and associated assumptions are set out below

Qutstanding Claims Reserve (OCR)

The aim of the OCR review for househeld and domestic all risks 1s to generate a best estimate weighted average OCR using
various actuarial techmques including a cham ladder statistical projection method applied te past claims paid, case eslimates
and claims volume data for each penl separately Consideration 1s also given to the impact any change n claims processing
will have on the estimate  If considerable uncertainty exists, then an uncertainty provision will be idennfied and documented
within the reserving reports

Claims Incurred But Not Reported Reserve (IBNR)

The aim of the IBNR review 1s to assess the appropriateness of the [IBNR factors used to set the IBNR reserve To do this, a
chain ladder statistical projection method 1s applied to past clams volume reported tniangles

Major events such as storms or floods are treated separately using development patterns appropriate to that type of event In
addtion, additional provisions are establhished for Liability and fire claims to reflect the additional volatility over and above
that seen In the available data

Unearned Premium_Reserve (UPR)

The UPR 15 calculated using a daily allocanon method These are annual pelicies but the majonity of pohicyhelders pay
presuums by monthly mstalments and accordingly a substantial part of the asset backing the UPR 1s future menihly
premiums

13 1 2 Creditor

Significant perils and loss factors include unemployment, morbidity, interest rates and the UK economic outlook generally
The vast majority of financial loss business underwrnitten by the Company consists of loan protection covering accident,
sickness and unemployment The reserving methodology and associated assumpuions for loan protection are sel oul below

Qutstanding Claims Reserve (OCR)

The OCR 15 calculated as the product of the number of active claims, the average duration remaining and the monthly
repayment amount The average claim duration assumption 1s based on past expenience of loan protection daia adjusted for
the current economic conditions  The adjustment was made on a judgemental basis, taking into account the most recent data
and economic predicitons as well as the data on similar products in the early 90’s

Claims Incurred But Not Reported Reserve (IBNR)

The IBNR is calculated in the same way as the OCR, though uses total duration An aliernative reserving technique, using
the chan ladder statishcal projection method applied to past claims data 1s used to provide an independent check con the
adequacy of the OCR plus IBNR

Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR)

Earned premiums are calculated on a basis that reflects the length of ume for which contracts have been 1n force and the
projected incidence of risk over the term of each contract

Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR)

An unexpired nsk reserve (URR) 15 required to be established when the unearned premium reserve belonging to an
idenufiable segment of business 1s insufficient o cover the estimated cost of all future claims and expenses which will attach
to that unearned business

An analysss by segment was carried out and determined that an URR of £2 4m in respect of the single premium busmess

(Loan Protection and Asset Finance) was required This was due to the expectation that future claims experience would
detertorate as a result of anu-selecuon caused by the PPI nus-selling judicial review
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13 Insurance liabilitzes and remsurance assets (continued)

131  Short-term insurance contracis — assumptions, changes 1n assumptions and sensitivity (continued)

13 1 3 Claims development tables

The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company's ability to estimate the ulumate value of claims

The top half of each of the following tables below 1llustrates how the Company’s estimate of total claims outstanding for each
accident year has changed at successive year-ends The bottom half of the table reconciles the cumulative clamms to the amount
appearing i (he batance sheet The accident year basis 15 considered the most appropriate for the business written by the

Company

Household and domestic all risks - gross
Accident year

Estimate of ulimate claims costs

- at end of accident year

- one year later

- two years later

- three years later

- four years later

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Liabihity recognised 1n the balance sheet
Liability 10 respect of prior years

Total gross hability included 1n the balance sheet

Household and domestic all nsks - net
Accident year

Estimate of ultimate claims costs

- at end of accident year

- one year later

- two years later

- three years later

- four years later

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Liability recogmised 1n the balance sheet
Liability in respect of prior years

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total
279,562 151,107 161,951 174,685 139,803 907,108
275,760 146,736 153,194 168,892 . -
266,666 145667 138,663 - - .
260,654 138,908 - - - .
254,222 - - - . .
254222 138,908 138,663 168,892 139,803 840488

(252,430)  (134,900)  (131,859)  (150,145)  (77,696) _ (747,030)
1,792 4,008 6,804 18,747 62,107 93,458
6,029

99,487

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total
270,968 151,107 161,951 174,685 139,803 898,514
265,419 146,736 153,194 168,892 - .
256,353 145667 138,663 - - -
251,161 138,908 R . ] .
244,729 - - . ) .
244,729 138908 138,663 168,892 139,803 830995

(243,170)  (134,900) (131,859)  (150,145) _ (77,696) _ (737,770)

1,559 4,008 6,804 18,747 62,107 93,225

Total net habihty included in the balance sheet

4,896

98,121

As at the year ended 31 December 2011 the Company hmited its exposure to loss within nsurance operauons through

participation n reinsurance arrangements
arrangement which operates across both Lloyds Banking Group General Insurance legal entities

The household portfolio 15 protected through a catastrophe excess of loss
The nature of the

programme, which was renewed on 1 July 2011, 1s very similar to that put in place 1n previous years Amounis recoverable
from reinsurers were esimated 1n a manner consistent with the assumptions used for ascertaiming the underlying policy
benefits The purpose of a household excess of the loss catastrophe remnsurance programme 1s to protect agamst the adverse

effects of large weather related events

The gross hambity of £99 487m and net hability of £98 121m shown in the above tables exclude £9 289m of unallocaled

claims handling expenses
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13 Insurance liabihties and remnsurance assets (continued)
131 Short-term imsurance contracts ~ assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity (continued)
13.1.3 Claums development tables (continued)

Creditor — gross and net

Accident year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total
Estimate of ultimate claims costs

- at end of accident year 36,176 52,607 99,120 70,832 44,112 302,847
- one year later 33,558 51,357 82,879 45,386 - -
- two years laler 30,743 48,730 75,871 - - -
- three years later 29,911 47,153 - - - -
- four years later 29,702 - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 29,702 47153 75,871 45,386 44,112 242,224
Cumulatuve payments to date (29,567 (45,869) (64,212) (34,087) (9,138) (182,873}
Liability recogmsed n the balance sheet 135 1,284 11,659 11,299 34,974 59,351
Liability in respect of prior years 13
Total hahility included m the balance sheet 59,364

The Company has not had any remsurance cover in place for the current and preceding 5 years 1n respect of financial loss risks
The liabihty of £59 364m shown 1n the above table excludes £3 470m of unallocated claims handling expenses
132 Movements in insurance habilities and remsurance assets

(a) Claims and loss adjustment expenses

2011 2010

Gross Remnsurance Net Gross Remsurance Net
Nouified clatms 213,624 (1,655) 211,969 164,861 (2,674) 162,187
Incurred but not reported 47,869 - 47,869 58,543 - 58,543
Total at beginning of year 261,493 (1,655) 259,838 223,404 (2,674) 220,730
Cash paid for claims settled n the
year (229,069 290 (228,779) (218,734) 191 (218,543)
Increase in hiabilities
(see Note 21)
- ansing from current year claims 209,844 - 209,844 277,11 - 277,191
- ansmg from prior year claims (69,098) (1)) (69,099) (20,368) 828 (19,540}
Total at end of year 173,170 (1,366) 171,804 261,493 (1,655) 259,838
Noufied claims 143,240 (1,366) 141,874 213,624 (1,655) 211,969
Incurred but not reported 29,930 - 29,930 47,869 - 47,869
Total at end of year 173,170 (1,366) 171,804 261,493 (1,655) 259,838

There has been no sigmficant change year on year in the assumptions and methodologies used for seiting the best esumate
reserves, other than the speaific adjustments made (o creditor reserves to allow for the effect of economic conditions on
development patierns as described in Note 13 1 2
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13 Insurance habilities and reinsurance assets (continued}
132 Movements in msurance habilities and remsurance assets (continued)
(b) Unearned premiums and unexpired short-term msurance nsks
2011 2010

Gross  Remsurance Net Gross Remnsurance Net
Unearned premiums
At 1 January 304,298 (10,447) 293,851 386,438 (11,391) 375,047
Increase in the year
(see Note 18} 559,502 (27,602) 531,900 594,137 (20,698) 573,439
Release 1o the year
(see Note 18) (586,786) 25,594  (561,192) (676,277) 21,642 (654,635)
At 31 December 277,014 (12,455) 264,559 304,298 (10,447) 293,851
Unexpired risk reserve
At 1 January - - - - - -
Increase in the year
(see Note 21) 2,400 - 2,400 - - -
Release 1n the year
{see Note 21) - - - - - -
At 31 December 2,400 - 2,400 - - -
These provisions represent the liability for short-term insurance contracts for which the Company’s obhigations are not expired
at year-end The unexpired risk provision relates to creditor policies for which the Company expects (o pay claims 1n excess of
the related unearned premium provision

14 Provision for other hahlities and charges

Premium

Rebal:es FSCS Levy Total
At 1 January 2011 603 584 1,187
Used during the year (2,024) (B26) (2,850)
Statement of comprehensive income charge
- addittonal provisions 1,752 826 2,578
- under/{over)-provision from prior years 1,421 242 1,663
A1 31 December 2011 1,752 826 2,578

In accordance with the ABI Statement of Recommended Practice a provision has been made in respect of premiums that may
be refunded in the future but on which the premiums have already been fully earned This estimale has been based upon prior
experience and also includes an amount m respect of potential rebates required for customers identified as having dual
INsurance cover

Financial Services Compensation Scheme (‘FSCS™) Levy

This levy relates to the amount payable to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) in the event of the farlure of a
company regulated under the FSA  The FSA has unul 31 March 2012 to finalise 1ts levy n respect of us financial year
2011/12, and 31 March 2013 in respect of 2012/13 It 1s not anticipated that any further levy will be raised for 2011/12 The

maximum levy which can be raised 18 estimated to be £12 4m for the 2011 basis year (2012/13) The FSCS has issued its Plan
and Budget for 2012/13 and a provision of £0 8m i respect of this levy 15 held in these financial statements

All provisions are deemed o be payable within one year

38




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS {continued)
{All amounts n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

15 Trade and other payables
2011 2010
Amounts owed to related parties (Note 29) 47,856 80,286
Insurance payables 20,968 11,389
Other payables and accrued expenses 1,804 971
Socal secunty and other taxes payable 9,145 7,332
At 31 December 79,773 99,978
2011 2010
Non-current habilhities
Included tn the amounts due (o related parties 1s an amount payable in respect of
the Company’s share of retirement benefit deficit (Note 17) 2,966 4,665
Al other trade and other payables are current habilities
16 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax s calculated n full on temporary differences under the hiability method using a tax rate of 25% (2010
27%) Legslation to reduce the main rate of corporation 1ax from 26% to 25% from 1 April 2012 has been included mn the
Finance Act 2011 and substantively enacted on 5 July 2011 Accordingly Deferred 1ax has been recognsed at 25%

In lis Budget speech on 21 March 2012 the Chancellor announced a further reduction n the rate of corporation tax to 24%
with effect from 1 April 2012 This further reduction 1s expected to be enacted under the Provisional Collection of Taxes Act
1968 on 26 March 2012

The proposed further reductions in the rate of corporation tax by 1% per annum to 22% by 1 April 2014 are expected (o

continue to be enacted separalely each year The effect of these further changes upon the Company’s deferred tax balances 1s
not quanufiable at this ime

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account 1s as follows.

2011 2010
At 1 January 22,410 22,340
Statement of comprehensive income (credit)/charge (Note 24) (974) 70
At 31 December 21,436 22,410

The movement in the deferred tax assets and habiliies during the year without taking into consideration the offsetiing of
balances within the same tax junisdiction 1s as follows

(a) Deferred tax assels

Accelerated

capital
allowances Total
At 1 January 2010 @) (2)
Statement of comprehensive income credit during 2014 - R
At 31 December 2010 2 (2)
Statement of comprehensive income credit during 2011 - -
At 31 December 20i1 (2) (2)
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16 Deferred income tax (continuved)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities
Equalisation
reserve and other
temporary
differences Total
At 1 January 2010 22,342 22,342
Statement of comprehensive income charge during 2010 70 70
At 31 December 2010 22,412 22412
Statement of comprehensiwve income credit during 2011 (974) {974)
At 31 December 2011 21,438 21,438
All of the deferred tax assets were available for offset against deferred tax habilities and hence the net deferred tax provision at
31 December 2011 was £21 436m (2010 £22 410m)
Deferred tax has been provided at 25% (2010 27%)
The deferred tax hiability due, expected to arise after more than one year 15 £21 436m (2010 £22 410m)
The solvency regulations i the UK require the Group to establish an equahsation reserve to be utilised against abnormal future
losses anising n certain classes of business The regulations prescribe that the reserve is increased every year by an amount that
15 calculated as a percentage of net premwums written for those classes during the financial year These amounts are deductible
expenses for tax purposes The equalisation reserve 15 taxed when released
17 Retirement benefit obligations
The Company does not directly employ staff However, the Company’s share of costs relating to the Group’s defined benefit
schemes s reflected through the statement of comprehensive ncome n a management charge from a fellow subsidiary (Note
22) and on the balance sheet as a payable to related parties (Notes 15 and 29)
Full details can be found 10 the 2011 annual report and accounts of the Company's uttimate parent company Copies of the
ultimate parent company’s 2011 annual report and accounts may be obtained from the Company Secretary's Department,
Lloyds Banking Group pic, 25 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7HN
18 Net prenuum revenue

2011 2010
Short-term 1nsurance contracls
- premums receivable 559,502 594,137
- change 1n unearned premium teserve 27,284 82,140
Premium tevenue ansing from insurance contracts 1ssued 586,786 676,277
Short-term remsurance contracts
- premums payable (27,602) (20,698)
- change 1n unearned premum reserve 2,008 (944)
Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts 1ssued (25,594) (21,642)
Net premium revenue 561,192 654,635
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19 Investment income
2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents interest ncome 4,568 5,139
Included 1n interest ncome is £4 452m (2010 £4 254m) income from accounts placed with a fellow Group subsidiary
20 Net fair value gains/{losses) on assets held at fair value through mncome
2011 2010
Net farr value gains/(losses) on assels held at fair value through mmcome
- fair value gains 6,557 5,878
- fair value losses (490) (1,010)
6,067 4,868

Fair value gains include gains ansing from mterest of £0 808m (2010 £1 099m) and dividends of £0 988m (2010 £1 968m)
on financial assets held at fair value through income  Net fair value gains/(losses) on assets held at fair value through income
include net reahsed gans of £2 312m (2010 £0 265m) and net unrealised gains of £1 876m (2010 £1 549m)

Net far value gains/{losses) on assets held at fair value through income includes net gains of £0 029m (2010 £0 083m) and
interest income of £0 033m (2010 £0 029m) 1n respect of an investment held 10 a Floating Rate Note 1ssued by a fellow group
subsidiary that was acquired by the vlumate parent company on 19 January 2009 (Note 29) which matured on 7 December

201
21 Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses
2011 2010
Gross Remsurance Net Gross Remnsurance Net

Current year claims and loss

adjustment expenses 209,844 - 209,844 277,191 - 277,191
Movement in costs of prior year

claims and loss adjusiment

expenses (69,098) () (69,099) (20,368) 828 (19,540}
Movement in the expected cost of

claims for unexpired risks 2,400 - 2,400 - - -
Total claims and loss

adjustment expenses 143,146 (1) 143,145 256,823 828 257,651
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22 Expenses by nature

2011 2010
Employee benefit expense (Note 23} 37,843 43,963
Software and other IT costs 21,666 17,001

Auditor’s remuneration
- Statutory Audit 100 104
- Non-audut services pursuant to regulation 28 27
Other recharged costs 30,564 22,160
Total costs re-charged (Note 29) 90,201 83,255
Allocated as loss adjustmen! expenses (34,219) (33,960)
Allocated as acquisition expenses (5,198) (7,416)
Investment management fees 491 408
QOther costs 5,939 8,591
Marketing and admmistralion expenses 57,214 50,878
Amortisation of acguisition expenses (Note 5) 197,090 225,167
254,304 276,045

Marketng costs relating to the acquinng of new and renewing of exising insurance contracts are included as part of

acquisilion expenses

Investment management fees are shown as part of marketing and administration expense

23 Employee benefit expense

2011 2010

Wages and salanes 25,452 31,266

Social security costs 3,151 2912

Pension costs (Note 17) 2,241 2,683

Share based payments (Note 28) 678 1,112

Other staff costs 6,321 5,990

37,843 43,963

Although the Company does not directly employ any staff, staff costs are incurred by the Company and these have been
identified as part of the overall management recharge above (Note 22)

Included in the pension costs charge above 15 an amount of £0 202m (2010 £0 214m} representing the Company’s share of
reurement benefit obligations under 1AS 19, of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes (Note 17), the balance of the

pension costs relate to delined contribution schemes

The average number of staff by acuvity for whom a recharge has been made during the year was as follows

2011 2010
Administration and finance 772 670
Underwnting 27 32
Claims 325 451
1,124 1,153
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24 Income tax expense
2011 2010
Current income tax
- current year 45,221 35,214
- prior years - 702
45,221 35916
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (Note 16) (974) 70
44,247 35,986
The charge for imcome taxation on the profit for the year is based on an effective Umted Kingdom corporation taxation rate of
26 5% (2010 28%) as the standard corporation Laxation rate changed from 28% to 26% effecuve 1 Apnl 2011
A reconcihation of the current taxation charge for the year to the charge that would result from applying the standard Umted
Kingdom corporation taxation rate to profit before taxation 1s given below
2011 2010
Profit before tax 174,378 130,946
Tax charge at effective UK corporation tax rate of 26 5% (2010 28%) 46,210 36,665
Non-taxable income (261) (551)
Effect of reduction 1n deferred tax rate to 25% (2010 27%) {1,702) (830)
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years - 702
Tax charge for the year 44,247 35,986
The effecuve tax rate for the year 1s 25% (2010 27%)
25 IDhvidend per share
Intenm dividends of £132m (£2 14 per share) were paid during the year n respect of 2011 Interim dividends of £119m
(£1 93 per share) were paid during the year in respect of 2010
The directors do not recommend any further dividend in respect of 2011
26 Cash generated by operations

2011 2010

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax 174,378 130,946
Adjustments for .

Investment income and net fair value gains on assets held at fair value

through income {10,635) (10,007)
163,743 120,939

Decrease n intangible insurance assets 13,295 35,679
Decrease 1n loans and receivables including msurance receivables 12,477 17,516
Decrease in insurance contract habilines (net) (114,926) (42,088)
Increase/(decrease) 1n provistons for other habilities and charges 1,391 (1,464)
Decrease n trade and other payables {20,205) (70,250)
Cash generated by operations 55,775 60,332
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27 Contingencies and commtments
Except as stated mn Note 14, in the opinion of the directors, there were no malenal contingent habibiies or commiiments
requinng disclosure (2010 £nil)
28 Share based payments

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company’s ultimate parent company operated the following share based
payment schemes, all of which are equity settled

Executive share option scheme

The executive share option schemes were long-term mcentive schemes available to certamn senior executives of Lloyds
Banking Group ple, with granis usually made annually Options were granted within limits set by the rules of the schemes
relating to the number of shares undet option and the price payable on the exercise of options The last grant of executive
ophtions was made 1n August 2005 These options were granted without a performance multiplier and the maxmmum Lirmt for
the grant of options 1 normal circumstances was three times annual salary Between Apnl 2001 and August 2004, the
aggregate value of the award based upou the market price at the date of grant could not exceed four times the executive’s
annual remuneration and, normally, the limit for the grant of options to an executive 1n any one year would be equal to 15
trmes annual salary with a maximum performance multiplier of 35 Prior to 18 April 2001, the normal limit was equal (o one
year’s remuneration and no performance multiphier was applied

Performance conditions for executive options
For options granted up to March 2001

The performance condition was that growth in earnings per share must be equal to the aggregate percentage change in the
Retail Prices Index plus three percentage pomnts for each complete year of the relevant period together with a further
condition that Lloyds Banking’s ranking based on total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and
growth 1n share price) over the relevant period should be 1n the top fifty companies of the FTSE 100

The relevant period for the performance conditions began at the end of the financial year preceding the date of grant and
continued until the end of the third subsequent year following commencement or, 1f not met, the end of such later year in
which the conditions were met Once the condiions were satisfied the options remained exercisable without further
conditions If they were not satisfied by the tenth anmiversary of the grant the options would lapse

For options granted from August 2001 to August 2004

The performance condiuon was binked to the performance of Lloyds Banking Group plc s total shareholder return (calculated
by reference to both dividends and growth in share price) against a comparator group of 17 compamies ncluding Lloyds
Banking Group plc

The performance concition was measured over a three year pertod which commenced at the end of the financial year
preceding the grant of the option and continued until the end of the third subsequent year “If the performance condiion was
not then met, 1t was measured at the end of the fourth financial year If the condition was not then met, the options would
lapse

To meet the performance conditions, the Lloyds Banking Group plc’s ranking aganst the comparator group was required to
be at least nmth The full grant of options only became exercisable if the Lloyds Banking Group plc was ranked first A
performance multiplier (of between ml and 100 per cent) was applied below this level to calculate the number of shares in
respect of which options granted to Executive Directors would become exercisable, and were calculated on a shding scale If
Lloyds Banking Group plc was ranked below median the options would not be exercisable

Options granted to senior executives other than Executive Directors were not so highly leveraged and, as a result, different

performance multiphers were apphed te therr options For the majonty of executives, options were granted with the
performance condition but with ne performance multipher
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28 Share based payments (continued)
Executive share option scheme (continued)
For options granted in 2005

The same conditions apply as for grants made up to August 2004, except that

e the performance condition was hnked to the performance of Lloyds Banking Group plc’s total shareholder return
{calculated by reference to both dividends and growth n share price) against a comparator group of 15 companies
including Lloyds Banking Group plc,

s 1if the performance condition was not met at the end of the third subsequent year, the options would lapse, and

e the full grant of options became exercisable only if Lloyds Banking Group was ranked 1n the top four places of the
comparator group A shding scale applied between fourth and eighth positions If Lloyds Banking Group was
ranked below the median (ninth or below) the options would lapse

Save-As-You-Earn schemes .

Eligible employees may enter into contracts through the Save-As-You-Earn schemes to save up to £250 per month and, at the
expiry of a fixed term of three, five or seven years, have the option to use these savings within six months of the exprry of the
fixed term to acquire shares in the Lloyds Banking Group plc at a discounted price of no less than 80 per cent of the market
price at the start of the mnvitation

Other share option plans

Lloyds Banking Group executive share plan 2003

The plan was adopted in December 2003 and under the plan share options may be granted to semor employees Oplions
under this plan have been granted specifically to facilitate recruitment and as such were not subject 10 any performance
conditions The plan’s usage has now been extended to not only compensate new recruits for any lost share awards but also to

make grants to key individuals for retention purposes with, in some mstances, the grant being made subject to individual
performance conditions

Lloyds Banking Group Share Buy Out Awards

As part of arrangements to facilitate the recruitment of certain Executives, options have been granted by individual deed and,
where appropriate, in accordance with the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonity

The awards were granted 1n recognition that the Executives’ outstanding awards over shares 1n their previous employing
company lapsed on accepting employment with the Lloyds Banking Group

Other share plans

Lloyds Bankmg Group long-term mcentive plan

The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) introduced 1n 2006 15 aimed at dehivering sharehotder value by Imking the receipt of
shares to an improvement m the performance of Lloyds Banking Group plc over a three year peniod Awards are made withm

limts set by the rules of the plan, with the limits determining the maximum number of shares that can be awarded equating Lo
three times annual salary In exceptional circumstances this may increase (o four times annual salary
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28

Share based payments (continued)
Other share plans (continued)
Lloyds Banking Group long-term mcentive plan (continued)
The performance conditions for awards made in March, Apnl and August 2008 are as follows |

1 For 50 per ccnt of the award (the EPS Award) — the percentage mcrease in earmings per share of Lloyds Banking
Group plc (on a compound annualised basis) over the relevant period needed 1o be at least an average of 6 percentage
pomnts per annum greater than the percentage crease (of any) m the Retail Prices Index over the same period 1f it
was less than 3 per cent per annum the EPS Award would lapse If the increase was more than 3 per cent but less than
6 per cenl per annum then the proporuon of shares released would be on a straight line basis between 17 5 per cent
and 100 per cent The relevant peniod commenced on 1 January 2008 and ended on 31 December 2010

u For the other 50 per cent of the award (the TSR Award) — 1t was necessary for Lloyds Banking Group plc’s total
shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share price) to exceed the median of a
comparator group (13 companies) over the relevant period by an average of 75 per cent per annum for the TSR
Award to vest in full 17 5 per cent of the TSR Award would vest where the Lloyds Banking Group plc’s total
shareholder return was equal to median and vesting would occur en a straight line basis in between these points
Where Lloyds Banking Group plc’s total shareholder return was below the median of the comparator group, the TSR
Award would lapse The relevant period commenced on 6 March 2008 and ended on 5 March 2011

In 2008, awards were made of 375 per cent of base salaty to the Lioyds Banking Group plc Chief Executive and two of the
Lloyds Banking Group plc Executive Directors for retention purposes, and in hight of data reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee which showed total remuneration to be behind median both for the FTSE 20, and the other major UK banks

As a consequence of the acquisiuon of HBOS and the general market turmoul, in March 2009 the Lloyds Banking Group plc
Remuneration Commuttee decided that the performance test for the 2008 awards should be based on the performance of
Lloyds Banking Group plc up to 17 September 2008, the date prior lo the announcement of the HBOS acquisition The
performance test was on a fair value basis, on the estimated probability, as at that date, of achieving the performance
conditions

The performance conditions for awards made in Aprnl, May and September 2009 are as follows

1 Earnings per share (EPS) relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance will be measured based on EPS growth
over a three year period from the baseline EPS of 2008

n Economuc Profit (EP) relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance will be measured based on the extent to
which cumulative EP targets are achieved over the three year period

An additional discretionary award was made 10 April, May and September 2009 The performance conditions for those
awards are as follows

1 Synergy Savings The release of 50 per cent of the shares will be dependent on the achievement of target run rate
synergy savings i1 2009 and 2010 as well as the achievement of sustainable synergy savings of at least £1 5 billion
by the end of 2011 The award will be broken down nto three equally weighted annual tranches Performance will
be assessed at the end of each year against annual performance targets based on a trajectory to meet the 2011 target
The extent to which targets have been achieved will determie the proportion of shares to be banked each year Any
release of shares will be subject to the Lloyds Bankwng Group plc Remuneration Commuttee judging the overall
success of the delivery of the integration programme

n Integration Balanced Scorecard The release of the remaining 50 per cent of the shares will be dependent on the
outcome of a Balanced Scorecard of non-financial measures of the success of the integration 1n each of 2009, 2010
and 2011 The Balanced Scorecard element wil} be broken down into three equally weighted tranches The tranches
will be crystallised and banked for each year of the performance cycle subject to separate annual performance
targets across the four measurement categories of Building the Business, Customer, Risk and People and
Organisation Development
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28 Share based payments (continued)
Other share plans (continued)
Lloyds Banking Group long-term mncentive plan (continned)
The performance conditions for awards made in March and August 2010 are as follows

1 EPS relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance will be measured based on EPS growth over a three-year
penod from the baseline EPS of 2009

n EP televant to 50 per cent of the award Performance will be measured based on the compound annual growth rate
of adjusted EP over the three financial years starting on 1 January 2010 relative to an adjusted 2009 Economuc
Profit base

The performance conditions for awards made 1n March and September 2011 are as follows
1 EPS relevant to 50 per cent of the award The performance larget 15 based on 2013 adjusted EPS outcome

n EP relevant to 50 per cent of the award The performance target 1s based on 2013 adjusted EP outcome

Share incentive plan

Free shares

An award of shares may be made annually to employces based on a percentage of each cmployee’s salary in the preceding
year up (o a maxsmum of £3,000 The percentage 15 normally announced concurrently with Lloyds Banking Group plc’s
annual results and the price of the shares awarded 1s announced at the ime of award The shares awarded are held m trust for
a mandatory petiod of three years on the employee’s behalf, during which period the employee 15 entitled to any dividends
paid on such shares The award 1s subject to a non-market based condition 1f an employee leaves the Lloyds Banking Group
ple wathin this three year peniod for other than a ‘good’ reason, all of the shares awarded will be forfeited

The last award of free shares was made 1n 2008

Matching shares

Lloyds Banking Group ple undertakes 1o match shares purchased by employees up to the value of £30 per month, these
matching shares are held n trust for a mandatory pertod of three years on the employee’s behalf, during which period the
employee 1s entitled to any dividends paid on such shares The award 1s subject to a non-market based condition if an
employee leaves within this three year peniod for other than a ‘good’ reason, 100 per cent of the matching shares are forfeited
Simularly if the employees sell their purchased shares within three years, their matching shares are forfented

The number of shares awarded relaung to matching shares i 2011 was 30,999,387 (2010 17,411,651), with an average fair
value of £0 42 (2010 £0 63), based on market prices at the date of award

Other information

The charge made to the income siatement represents the Company’s share of the cost of the above schemes This charge has
been allocated to the Company based on the number of the Company's employees who participate 1n the above schemes Tt 1s
not practicable for the Company to provide information regarding the ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise
prices, weighted average remaiming contractual hfe information and the number of opuions outstanding that 1s speaific 1o the
Company's employees without incurring significant additional cost

Full details of the ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise prices, weighted average remaiming contractual hie
information and number of options outstanding for the above schemes overall can be found in the 2011 annual report and
accounts of the Company's ulimate parent company Copies of the ulimate parent company's 2011 annual report and
accounts may be obtaned from the Company Secretary's Depariment, Lloyds Bankmg Group ple, 25 Gresham Street,
London, EC2V 7HN
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Related—party transactions

The Company s immediate parent company 15 Lloyds TSB Generat Insurance Holdings Limited  The company regarded by
the directors as the ultimate parent and controlling company 1s Lloyds Banking Group plc, a hmited hability company
incorporated and domiciled in Scotland, which 1s also the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings for which
group accounts are drawn up and of which the Company 15 a member Lloyds TSB Bank plc 1s the parent company of the
smallest such group of undertakings Copies of the group accounts of both companies may be obtained from the Company
Secretary’s Department, Lloyds Banking Group ple, 25 Gresham Street, London, EC2V THN

The Company’s related parties include parents, fellow subsidiaries, pension schemes of the Company’s ultimate parent
company and the Company’s key management personnel  Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the actvities of the Company, which 1s deterrined to be the Company’s

directors

Transzctions with key management

There were no transactions 1n the normal course of business that were matenal to key management or the Company other than
those disclosed as part of directors’ remuneration as disclosed below Key management compensation comprised

2011 2010
Salaries and other short-term employee benefils 1,261 592
Post-employment benefits 67 37
Share based payments 109 163
1,437 792

The Company’s share of the emoluments of its directors was £1,260,662 (2010 £591,538)

One director exercised share options this year (2010 Nil) Shares were received or receivable in respect of qualifying service
under long term incentive plans by 8 directors (2010 6}

No ditectors are accruing retirement benefits (2010 1) under defined benefit pension schemes

The Company 5 share of contributions paid to money purchase pension schemes in respect of directors™ qualifying services
was £66,730 (2010 £36,614) The highest pawd director’s scheme recerved £3,762 (2010 £mil)

The Company’s share of the emoluments of 115 lnghest paid director was £270,154 (2010 £108,877)

Al the year end, the hughest paid director’s accrued pension totalled £ml (2010 £ml per annum), being the pension
entitlement based on pensionable service with the group to 31 December 2011 but payable at normal retirement age

The emoluments of the former Chairman (A G Kane) were borne by other group undertakings

The emoluments of T E Strauss, who 1s a director of other Lloyds Banking Group companies, are not recharged to this
Company as 1t 15 considered that his services to this Company are incidental to his other activities within the group
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Related—party transactions (continued)
Transactions with other related parties

(2) Sales of insurance contracts and purchase of other services

Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts include

- comnussion payable to fellow group subsidiaries

Expenses for marketing and adnmimistration include

- services of key management personnel from fellow group subsidiary
- other management services from fellow group subsidiary

- investment management services from fellow group subsidiary

.

(b) Year-end balances ansing from the sales of insurance contracts and purchases of products and services

Collecuve Investment Schemes
- imvestment 1n a parent company

Debt Securities
- mvestment 1n a fellow group subsidiary

Amount due from related parties (Note 8)

- due from a parent company :n respect of a 3 year fixed rate treasury deposit with
an interest rate of 4 27% per annum

- due from fellow group subsidianies 1n respect of insurance operations and
management charges

Amounts due to related parties

- due to fellow group subsidiaries 1n respect of insurance operations and
management charges (Note 15)

- due lo a parent company 1n respect of group relief for income tax

2011 2010
148,021 158,890
1,437 792
88,764 82,463
50,201 83,255
491 408
50,692 83,663
238,713 242,553
2011 2010
10,237 13,453
- 3,973
90,579 90,569
13,293 7,014
103,872 97,583
47,856 80,286
45,221 35,214
93,077 115,500
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